
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 638-
1110.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETINGS 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, March 13, 2012                                                                                City Council Chambers 
6:30 p.m.                                                                       16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services Commission applicants beginning at 6:30 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall 
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment from 
the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more 
than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in 
writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition 
the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on 
specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  Feb. 14, 2012 Study Session; Feb. 14, 2012 Regular Meeting; Feb. 23, 2012 Black 

Diamond/Covington/Maple Valley Joint Meeting; and Feb. 28, 2012 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Department of Ecology Stormwater Grant Amendment (Akramoff) 
C-4. WSDOT Agreement for CIP 1127 (SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE) (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Comments on an Ordinance Adopting Street Vacation Procedures (Hart/Lyons) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission (Council) 
3. Accept CIP 1039 (SR 516:  SE Wax Road to Jenkins Creek) (Vondran) 
4. Approve Contract for Asset Management Program (Buck) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 13, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  FEBRUARY 14, 2012 CITY COUNCIL STUDY 

SESSION MINUTES; FEBRUARY 14, 2012 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES; FEBRUARY 23, 2012 BLACK DIAMOND/ 
COVINGTON/MAPLE VALLEY CITY COUNCILS JOINT MEETING 
MINUTES; AND FEBRUARY 28, 2012 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES   

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the February 14, 2012 City Council Study 
Session Minutes; February 14, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes; February 23, 2012 Black Diamond/Covington/Maple 
Valley City Councils Joint Meeting Minutes; and February 28, 
2012 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes   
. 

 
 
 

1 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 1 

 
City of Covington 

City Council Study Session Minutes 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, February 14, 2012, at 6:06 p.m., with Mayor Harto 
presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza (arrived @ 6:22 p.m.), David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, 
Wayne Snoey (arrived @ 6:10 p.m.), and Jeff Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; 
and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Laura Moser, Municipal and Community Relations, Waste Management, spoke on 
partnerships, planning for the future, and what Waste Management could offer Covington. 
 
David Ambur, Black Diamond Recycling & Transfer, spoke regarding his company and what 
they could offer Covington. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Solid Waste Franchise 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item which included a 
presentation regarding the meeting’s objectives, Covington’s history, current conditions, other 
issues to consider, options, and the next steps. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Akramoff provided 
responses. 

2 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 2 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
John Taylor, Government Community Relations Manager, CleanScapes, spoke regarding 
his company and urged Council to choose Mr. Akramoff’s presentation Option #2 – RFP/RFQ 
Process. 
 
Dennis Manes, South King County General Manager, Allied Waste, spoke regarding his 
company and urged Council to continue services with Allied Waste. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 
 

3 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 1 

 
City of Covington 

Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
February 14, 2012, at 7:07 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
Mayor Harto announced the 2011 Commissioner of the Year:  Ed Cook with Covington 
Economic Development Council..   
 
The Council recessed at 7:13 p.m. for a short celebration and reconvened at 7:29 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Darren Linse, 17801 SE 259th Street, Covington, asked Council to consider changes to setback 
requirements on residential lots. 
 
Ed Cook, Covington Economic Development Council Member, spoke regarding branding for 
the city and noted that CEDC would be looking into this in 2012. 
 
 

4 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 2 

 
RuthAnne Kepler, 19470 SE 266th, student at Cedar Valley Elementary, spoke on the 
importance of keeping Cedar Valley Elementary open. 
 
Chele Dimmett, 26626 190th Avenue SE, Timberlane resident, gave a report on the current 
activities in Timberlane and thanked city staff and council for assistance during storm. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke in agreement of Darren Linse’s 
request for changes in the setback requirements. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Minutes:  January 10, 2012 Special and Regular Meetings Minutes; January 

24, 2012 Joint Study Session with Planning Commission Minutes; and January 24, 2012 
Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Approval of Vouchers:  Vouchers #27147-27219, in the Amount of $221,949.29, Dated 
January 23, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000349307-1000349321, Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $139,268.76, Dated February 3, 2012. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 12-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
DECLARING THREE VEHICLES AS SURPLUS 
PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE REPLACEMENT. 

 
C-3. Resolution Declaring Surplus Vehicles. 

 
C-4. Franchise Fee and Utility Users Tax Compliance Review Services Contract. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Social Media Plan. 
 
Community Relations Coordinator Karla Slate gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Slate provided responses. 
 
Councilmember Lanza suggested a link to the council meeting agendas on the city’s Facebook 
page. 
 
 

5 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 3 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Wagner seconded to 
authorize the city manager to implement the proposed Social Media Plan.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
2.  Appoint Budget Priorities Advisory Committee (BPAC). 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to add to the Budget Priorities Advisory 
Committee Charter “if a member misses three consecutive meetings, they may be replaced 
without cause by the city manager.” 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Harto moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to amend the 
designations given to the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd adult alternates by moving Laura Morrissey to the 
1st adult alternate and Daniel Key to the 3rd alternate.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint the Budget Priorities Advisory Committee per the city manager’s 
recommendations as amended and to authorize the city manager to fill vacancies from 
among applicants.   Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Cedar Valley Elementary School Possible Closure. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson reported that the Save Cedar Valley Committee recently 
announced that the Kent School District was no longer considering a school closure in 
Covington, and staff had confirmed that with school district administration.   
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to send a thank you letter to the Kent School 
District after the official notice has been announced by the District. 
 
Council Action:  There was also Council consensus to send a recognition letter to the Save 
Cedar Valley group. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
George Pearson, 18623 SE 261st Street, Covington, thanked the city and acknowledged the 
maintenance crew for their hard work during the recent storm. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
 

6 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 14, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 4 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential Litigation (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 8:50 p.m. to 9:05 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

7 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 23, 2012 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 1 

City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley 
Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, February 23, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Joint Meeting of the City Councils for the cities of Black Diamond, Covington and Maple 
Valley was called to order at Covington City Hall Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Covington, Washington, Thursday, February 23, 2012, at 7:02 p.m., with Covington Mayor 
Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Rebecca Olness, Mayor Pro Tem Craig Goodwin, Tamie Deady, Joe May, and Ron 
Taylor.  
 
BLACK DIAMOND STAFF PRESENT: 
Brenda Martinez, Assistant City Administrator/City Clerk and May Miller, Finance Director. 
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Rob Hendrickson, Finance 
Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Bill Allison, Deputy Mayor Victoria Laise Jonas, Layne Barnes, Linda Johnson, Sean 
Kelly, and Erin Weaver. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Noel Gerken. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY STAFF PRESENT: 
David Johnston, City Manager; Tony McCarthy, Finance Director; and Shaunna Lee-Rice, City Clerk. 
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS: 
Mayor Harto opened Joint Meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Harto called for approval of the agenda. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  16-0.  Motion carried. 

8 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 23, 2012 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 2 

 
OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR HARTO: 
Mayor Harto welcomed the three cities. 
 
ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
1. Shared Animal Services. 
 
Covington City Manager Derek Matheson gave a presentation which included three parts:  the 
King County option; the Southeast option; and the conclusion with a comparison, a 
recommendation, a request for direction, and some next steps if the staff recommendation 
acceptable. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Matheson provided 
responses. 
 
The councilmembers from each city discussed the shared animal services options. 
 
Council Action:  There was consensus from all three councils on three general statements 
that can be communicated back to King County: 1) the three councils are generally 
supportive of this three-year county contract; 2) revenue generation is a huge issue for the 
three councils; and 3) staff should continue to work on the Southeast option over time so it 
is not such a rush if a change is needed in 2015. 
 
Council Action:  There was consensus from all three councils on two specific statements: 1) 
research information about an amnesty program; and 2) raise the question about early 
termination. 
 
COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS: 
Councilmembers expressed appreciation for the collaboration between the three cities and noted 
the benefit of the three cities establishing a regional presence. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.  
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Covington Deputy City Clerk    Covington City Clerk 
 
 

9 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 28, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 28, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
February 28, 2012, at 7:04 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon and Jim Scott. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
excuse Councilmembers Mhoon and Scott.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, 
Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Ann Mueller, Senior Planner; and Joan 
Michaud, Deputy City Clerk. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Arts Commission Chair Sandy Bisordi accepted the Youth Art Month Proclamation. 
• Aquatics Specialist Rachel Bahl accepted the Aquatic Center 35th Anniversary 

Proclamation. 
• Finance Director Rob Hendrickson accepted the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Award. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Keil Carr, Project Uth, spoke regarding pet licensing and domestic violence awareness 
activities that Project Uth is undertaking. 
 

10 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 28, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 2 

Noel Campbell, Project Uth, spoke regarding a pool party event on April 6 Project Uth is 
planning. 
 
Raylin Carpenter, Project Uth, spoke regarding an activity survey for teenagers that Project 
Uth will be conducting. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes of January 28, 2012 Annual Strategic Planning Summit. 

 
C-2. Vouchers #27220-27294, in the Amount of $143,034.98, Dated February 6, 2012; and 

Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000371645-1000371659 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $144,665.47, Dated February 17, 2012. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the February 9 meeting. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Chair Sandy Bisordi reported on the February 9 meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Daniel Key reported on the February 2 and February 16 
meetings. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair David Aldous reported on the February 15 meeting. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the January 26 and 
February 23 meetings. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Comments from the Public on a Multi-Family Property Tax Exemption to Identify 
Residential Target Areas Ordinance. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the public hearing and called for public comments. 
 
Gerald Gobel, 15812 SE 256th Street, Covington, asked Council to consider whether it is 
advantageous to focus on the downtown area as the target area for tax exemptions. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses. 
 
 

11 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 28, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 05-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON CREATING 
CHAPTER 3.80 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATING TO EXEMPTIONS FROM AD VALOREM 
PROPERTY TAXATION FOR MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING IN 
DESIGNATED RESIDENTIAL TARGETED AREAS AND 
ESTABLISHING RESIDENTIAL TARGETED AREAS FOR 
THE MULTI-FAMILY PROPERTY TAX.  

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 05-12 identifying the areas to be designated as a residential target 
area for multi-family tax exemptions in the City of Covington and adopting CMC 3.80 
Multi-Family Property Tax Exemption.  Vote:  4-1 (Voting yes:  Harto, Lanza, Snoey, 
Wagner; voting no:  Lucavish).  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
2.  Discuss Citizen Request Regarding Setbacks. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers discussed this item and provided comments. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
select Option No. 2 as the desired policy option on the issue of setting setbacks for accessory 
structures in residential zones and give direction to staff.  (Option 2:  The issue of 
providing additional exceptions to setbacks for certain accessory structures in residential 
zones may need some study and should be considered as part of the Planning Commission’s 
and Council’s Work Program for 2013.)   Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Approve City Manager Merit Goals for 2012. 
 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the 2012 Merit Goals for the City Manager as follows:  1) Provide excellent 
professional advice and administrative support to help the Budget Priorities Advisory 
Committee (BPAC) fulfill its charter; 2) Construct Covington Community Park Phase One 
on time and within budget; and 3) Implement the Northern Gateway Study (i.e. complete 
those tasks planned for 2012).  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

12 of 100



Unapproved Draft – February 28, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 13, 2012 
 

 4 

 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, spoke regarding the setback issue, pet 
licensing, and downtown zoning. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

13 of 100



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 13, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #27295-27361, in the Amount of $278,944.46, Dated February 
21, 2012; Vouchers #27362-27378, in the Amount of $245.55, Dated February 24, 2012; 
Vouchers #27379-27379, in the Amount of $2,175.00, Dated February 29, 2012; and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1000394296-1000394308 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $134,742.93, Dated March 2, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #27295-27361, in the Amount 
of $278,944.46, Dated February 21, 2012; Vouchers #27362-27378, in the 
Amount of $245.55, Dated February 24, 2012; Vouchers #27379-27379, in 
the Amount of $2,175.00, Dated February 29, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000394296-1000394308 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $134,742.93, Dated March 2, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14 of 100



15 of 100



16 of 100



17 of 100



18 of 100



19 of 100



20 of 100



21 of 100



22 of 100



23 of 100



24 of 100



25 of 100



26 of 100



27 of 100



28 of 100



29 of 100



30 of 100



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 13, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE GRANT AMENDMENT 

NO. 1 WITH THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
FOR FY 2011 MUNICIPAL STORMWATER CAPACITY GRANTS PROGRAM. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Amendment No. 1 to Grant Agreement Number G1100032 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, Engineering Technician II 
 
EXPLANATION:   
On October 26, 2010, the city council authorized the city manager to sign and transmit a grant 
agreement for $116,629 from the State of Washington Department of Ecology (DOE) to aid in 
offsetting costs incurred in the implementation of the Phase II National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. 
 
Amendment No. 1 increases the budget by $50,000 and extends the expiration date from June 30, 
2012, to June 30, 2013. 
 
By approving this amendment it will allow us to continue implementation of the Phase II 
NPDES Permit. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not accept the DOE grant amendment of $50,000 to offset some of the financial impacts 
associated with the implementation of the Phase II NPDES Permit. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Surface Water Management Fund will receive reimbursement of an additional $50,000 to 
aid in offsetting the implementation of the Phase II NPDES Permit requirements. 
 
There are no match requirements for this grant. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember ____________moves, Councilmember ____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute Grant Amendment No. 1 
with the State of Washington Department of Ecology for FY 2011 Municipal 
Stormwater Capacity Grants Program. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

31 of 100



32 of 100



33 of 100



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 13, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT A LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT AND 

PROSPECTUS TO WSDOT IN ORDER TO OBLIGATE FEDERAL FUNDS FOR 
THE SR 516 JENKINS CREEK TO 185TH PLACE SE (CIP 1127) PROJECT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
1. Local Agency Agreement 
2. Project Prospectus 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On August 9, 2011, staff introduced the next project on SR 516 between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  The council was given an overview of the project along with an estimated timeline and 
staff introduced Tetra Tech (formerly INCA Engineers), the consultant selected from the RFP 
process to perform the project design. 
 
Since that meeting, staff has been working with the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) and the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) to transfer the 
remaining legislative funds from the previous project (CIP 1039, SR 516: Wax Road to Jenkins 
Creek) into this project in order to begin the design.  The funds have been moved to the new 
project and the Local Agency Agreement and Project Prospectus must now be executed in order to 
obligate spending the funds. 
 
Once the funds are obligated, staff will be returning to the council to authorize an agreement with 
Tetra Tech to provide consultant services. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The federal funds to be obligated is $809,602 (amount remaining from the $2 million that was 
appropriated from the legislature) and will be used to help fund the design phase of the subject 
project.  The total estimate for the design phase is $1,474,390.  The remaining $664,788 will come 
from the balance remaining in the CIP 1039 account (~$480,000) and a portion of the traffic 
impact fees which has a balance of approximately $567,000.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize executing and submitting a Local Agency Agreement and 
Project Prospectus to WSDOT in order to obligate federal funds for the SR 
516 Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE (CIP 1127) Project. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

34 of 100



35 of 100



36 of 100



37 of 100



38 of 100



39 of 100



40 of 100



41 of 100



Agenda Item 1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: March 13, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING FOR AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO 

CMC TITLE 12 FOR PROCESSING PETITIONS FOR VACATIONS OF 
STREETS AND PUBLIC EASEMENTS. 

  
RECOMMENDED BY:   Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance adopting regulations and procedures for processing petitions for 
vacations of streets and easements. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 
EXPLANATION:   
A street vacation refers to the process where an individual (who owns property adjacent to the 
right-of-way or public easement) can petition the city council to acquire public right-of-way for 
private use. Upon incorporation, the City of Covington adopted the King County procedures for 
street vacations.  In 2006, the city received a request to vacate a portion of 176th Pl SE.  During 
the processing of the petition, the previous city attorney, Noel Treat of Kenyon Disend, found 
inconsistencies between the city’s code provision and state law.  State law differentiates between 
city street vacations (Ch. 35.79 RCW) and county street vacations (Ch. 36.87 RCW) processes. 
Therefore, the city attorney recommended that the city update CMC 12.55- Street Vacation to 
reflect the street vacation process for cities.  

Staff is proposing to repeal CMC 12.55 – Street Vacation and replace it with a new CMC 12.55 - 
Street and Public Easement Vacation.  Under state law, all right-of-way vacations must obtain 
legislative approval from the city council, and the council may not vacate any right-of-way 
unless it determines that to do so is in the public interest.   

Staff is incorporating the general process, as established by statute, into the ordinance, as well as 
language that more clearly outlines requirements for submitting an application, verifying petition 
signatures, processing the hearing examiner’s recommendation, and requiring action by the city 
council.  The proposed ordinances also includes approval criteria to ensure that any requests for 
street vacations will be in the interest of advancing city planning goals and to be consistent with 
desired density and land uses. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:    

1) Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2) Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 
 
 
 

42 of 100



FISCAL IMPACT:   
No direct fiscal impacts are anticipated from the adoption of the street and public easement 
vacation process.  Any future petitions for street or public easement vacations will be required to 
pay appropriate land use processing fees and provide payment, or property in-lieu-of, as 
determined by the city council, if the street or easement vacation is granted. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X  Ordinance             Resolution             Motion    ___Other           
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance adopting amendments to CMC Title 12 for 
processing petitions for vacations of streets and public easements. 
  

 
REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director 
   Finance Director 

City Attorney 
City Manager 

 

43 of 100



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 06-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
REPEALING CHAPTER 12.55 CMC – STREET 
VACATION AND REPLACING WITH A NEW CHAPTER 
12.55 CMC - STREET AND PUBLIC EASEMENT 
VACATION PROCEDURE 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Covington incorporated in 1997 and is subject to the vacation of 

city street process pursuant to Chapter 35.79 RCW and has the authority to establish procedures 
and requirements for street vacations under RCW 35A.47; and  

 
WHEREAS, the city’s current code regulating street vacations, Covington Municipal 

Code (CMC) Chapter 12.55—Street Vacation, outlines the procedures for the vacation of county 
roads as set forth in Chapter 36.87 RCW, is not accurate and outdated and should be repealed 
and replaced in its entirety; and  
 

WHEREAS, the city has established procedures, guidelines, and criteria for granting a 
vacation of city right-of-way to guarantee that right-of-way vacations are granted in the interest 
of the public; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Covington City Council held a public hearing on the proposed ordinance 
on March 13, 2012. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.

 

  Covington Municipal Code chapter 12.55 CMC – Street Vacation is repealed 
and replaced with a new Chapter 12.55 CMC  as provided in the attached Exhibit 1and fully 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after proper posting 
and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

44 of 100



 

 
Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 

to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Passed by the City Council in an open public meeting on the 13th day of March 2012. 

 
 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  March 16, 2012 

 
EFFECTIVE:   March 21, 2012  

 
                            
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 

45 of 100



 
Page 1 of 7 

Title 12 
STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND BRIDGES 
Chapters: 
12.55    Street and Public Easement Vacation 

 
 
 

Chapter 12.55 
STREET AND PUBLIC EASEMENT VACATION 

Sections: 
12.55.010    Authority. 
12.55.020    Applicability. 
12.55.030    Initiation of street vacation. 
12.55.040    Vacation of waterfront streets. 
12.55.050    Complete application. 
12.55.060    Sufficiency of signatures. 
12.55.070    Public Hearing – date fixing. 
12.55.080    Notice of public hearing. 
12.55.090    Criteria for granting street vacation. 
12.55.010    Public hearing and final decision. 
12.55.011    Compensation for street vacation. 
12.55.012    Payment of compensation for street vacation. 
12.55.013    Appeals. 
 

12.55.010 Authority. 
Petitions for the vacation of city streets and public easements may be granted by the city 
council in accordance with the provisions of RCW 35.79 and as provided herein. 
 
12.55.020 Applicability. 
(1)  This chapter applies to each request for vacation by petition or initiated by the city council 
and includes streets, alleys, public easements, access tracts, undeveloped right-of-way, or a 
portion thereof. For the purpose of this chapter “street vacation” refers to a public right-of-way 
and easements refer to "public easements".  
 
(2)  If the street to be vacated is shown on the official zoning and street map, the approved 
street vacation will also change the official zoning and street map to remove the vacated street.  
 
12.55.030 Initiation of street vacation. 
(1)  A vacation may be initiation by the owners of more than two-thirds of the property 
abutting a street, alley, or portion thereof, sought to be vacated, or in the case of an easement, 
the owners of more than two-thirds of the property underlying the portion of the easement to 
be vacated.  
 

EXHIBIT 1

46 of 100

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.010�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.010�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.020�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.030�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.040�
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/covington/html/Coving12/Coving1255.html#12.55.050�


 
Page 2 of 7 

(2) The city council may initiate a street vacation by resolution without a petition by property 
owners.  The resolution shall contain a legal description of the subject property.  
 
12.55.040 Vacation of waterfront streets. 
(1)    The city shall not vacate a street, alley or public easement governed by this chapter if any 
portion of the subject property abuts a body of water unless: 
 

(a)  The vacation is sought to enable the city acquire the subject property for port purposes, 
beach or waterfront access purposes, boat moorage or launching sites, park, public view, 
recreation, or educational purposes, or other public uses; 

 
(b) The city council, by resolution, declares that the subject property is not presently being 

used as a street, alley, or public easement and that the subject property is not suitable for any 
of the following purposes: port, beach or water access, boat moorage, launching sites, park, 
public view, recreation, or education; or 

 
(c) The vacation is sought to enable the city to implement a plan, adopted by resolution or 

ordinance, that provides comparable or improved public access to the same shoreline area to 
which the subject property abuts, had the subject property included in the plan not been 
vacated. 
 
(2)    Before adopting a resolution vacating subject property under subsection (1)(b) of this 
section, the city shall: 
 

(a)  Compile an inventory of all rights-of-way within the city that abut the same body of 
water that is abutted by the subject property; 

 
(b) Conduct a study to determine if the subject property is suitable for use by the city for 

any of the following purposes; port, boat moorage, launching sites, beach or water access, park, 
public view, recreation or education; and 

 
(c)  Make a finding that the subject property is not suitable for any of the purposes listed 

under subsection (2)(b) of this section, and that the vacation is in the public interest. 
 
(3)  No vacation under this section shall be effective until the fair market value has been paid 
for the subject property. Money received from the vacation may be used by the city only for 
acquiring additional beach or water access, acquiring additional public view sites to a body of 
water, or acquiring additional moorage or launching sites.  
 
12.55.050 Complete application. 
(1) A petitioner(s) for a street vacation shall submit a complete application to the city that 
includes the following, unless otherwise determined by the director:  

 
(a)  A vacation petition with supporting affidavits on forms provided by the city;  

47 of 100



 
Page 3 of 7 

 
(b)  A legal description of the street, alley, or easement, or part thereof to be vacated. The 

legal description shall be prepared by a surveyor licensed in the state of Washington; 
 
(c)  For each petitioner, a title report indicating ownership and providing a legal description 

of the property owned by the petitioner; 
 
(d)  A site plan showing the street, alley, easement, or part thereof to be vacated and 

showing all properties and any developed or undeveloped rights-of-way within 500 feet of the 
street, alley, easement, or part thereof, to be vacated;  

 
(e)  An appraisal, prepared by an appraiser licensed in the state of Washington with an MAI 

designation, establishing the fair market value of the street, alley, or part thereof to be vacated. 
An appraisal is not required if only a utility easement is proposed to be vacated;  

 
(f)  Mailing labels of property owners, in accordance with the King County assessor’s office, 

located within 500 feet of any boundary of the street, alley, or easement, or part thereof, to be 
vacated;  

 
(g) Other information as deemed necessary by the director to consider the requested 

vacation; and 
 
(h) The application fee in the amount as set forth in the current fee resolution.  
 

(2) When deemed necessary by the director, an additional deposit adequate to cover other 
direct costs will be required. The department may elect to have the petition reviewed by a city-
approved and hired consultant. For reviews completed by a consultant, the city is authorized to 
charge the applicant the actual costs charged by the consultant, in addition to the city’s 
application fee. 
 
12.55.060 Sufficiency of signatures. 
For the purpose of determining the sufficiency of signatures of property owners on a petition 
for street vacation, the following rules shall govern: 
 

(a) Where property is subject to a mortgage, the signature of the mortgagor shall be 
sufficient. 

 
(b) Where property is subject to a contract of purchase, the signature of the contract 

vendee shall be sufficient. 
 
(c) Where property is subject to a deed of trust, the signature of the grantor shall be 

sufficient. 
 

48 of 100



 
Page 4 of 7 

(d) In the case of ownership by partnership or corporation, the signature of any officer 
authorized by the bylaws or resolution of the partners or board of directors shall be sufficient 
when evidenced by a copy of the section of bylaws or resolution granting such authority. 

 
(e) Where property is subject to a long-term lease (in excess of 25 years) the signature of 

either the lessor or lessee shall be sufficient. 
 
(f) In the case of property subject to a life estate, the signature of the holder of the life 

estate shall be sufficient. 
 
(g) In the case of property owned by the estate of a decedent or incompetent, the 

signature of the duly qualified personal representative or guardian shall be sufficient. 
 

12.55.070 Public hearing – date fixing. 
Upon receiving a completed application for vacation, or upon passage of a resolution by the city 
council seeking vacation, the city council shall, by resolution, establish a date and time for an 
open record public hearing before the hearing examiner. In cases where street vacation is 
initiated by city council resolution, the resolution seeking vacation shall include the date and 
time of the open record public hearing before the hearing examiner. A public hearing for a 
street vacation petition shall be scheduled no more than sixty (60) days and no less than twenty 
(20) days after the city council passes the resolution fixing the date and time for the public 
hearing.  
 
12.55.080 Notice of public hearing.  
(1) Notice of a petition or city council resolution seeking any street vacation shall contain the 
minimum information as follows: 

 
(a) The city file number;  
 
(b) A statement that a petition has been filed or resolution has been passed to vacate the 

street or alley, along with a description of the street or alley to be vacated;   
 
(c) The date, time, place, and type of the public hearing before the hearing examiner; and, 
 
(d) A statement of the right of any person to submit written comments to the city prior to 

the public hearing or appear before the hearing examiner at the public hearing to provide 
comment. 
 
(2) At least twenty (20) calendar days before the public hearing, public notice shall be 
distributed as follows:  

 
(a) Mailed notice shall be sent to each resident living immediately adjacent to the street, 

alley, or easement, or part thereof, to be vacated;  
 

49 of 100



 
Page 5 of 7 

(b) Mailed notice shall be sent to the property owners within 500 feet of any boundary of 
the street, alley, or easement, or part thereof, to be vacated;   

 
(c)  Mailed notice shall be sent to utility agencies that have facilities located within the city 

or that possess a franchise agreement for providing utility service within the city;  
 
(d)  A copy of the notice shall be published in the city’s official newspaper;  
 
(e) A copy of the notice shall be posted in three public places within the city; and 
 
(f) A copy of the notice shall be provided on a public notice board, as prescribed by the city, 

located on the street, alley, or easement, or part thereof, to be vacated.  
 
(3)  If fifty (50) percent or more of the abutting property owners file written objection to a city 
council initiated vacation with the city clerk prior to the time of the scheduled public hearing, 
then the city council shall be prohibited from proceeding with the public hearing or granting the 
vacation. The calculation of the fifty percent threshold under this section shall be based on 
front footage, in the case of streets and alleys, and square footage of the easement area in the 
case of public easements.  
 
12.55.090 Criteria for granting street vacation.  
The hearing examiner and city council shall review the requested vacation provided the 
applicant can demonstrate that:  
 

(a) Granting the vacation will not conflict with the general purposes and objectives of the 
city’s comprehensive plan regarding land use, streets, utilities, drainage, parks, trails, and open 
space; 

 
(b) The street, or portion thereof, is not likely to serve a useful public purpose both now 

and in the future, which cannot be met through use of easements for a specific purpose, or the 
vacation will best serve the public interest; 

 
(c) The vacated area will not increase the number of single-family building sites or multi-

family density. This may be mitigated by appropriate conditions on the vacated area; and 
 
(d) The request for vacation was not initiated to correct a condition created by an applicant 

in violation of city ordinance.  
 
12.55.010  Public hearing and final decision. 
(1)  The hearing examiner shall hold an open record public hearing on vacations and provide a 
recommendation to the city council.  The hearing held before the hearing examiner shall be the 
sole open public hearing. 
 

50 of 100



 
Page 6 of 7 

(2) The city council may adopt, reject, or modify the hearing examiner’s recommendation based 
on the criteria demonstrated by the applicant in CMC 12.55.090.   
 
(3)  The city may condition the vacation to retain easements for the construction, repair, and 
maintenance of public utilities and services and establish easement trails for pedestrians and 
nonmotorized vehicular travel. The city council shall grant easements to utility agencies within 
the right-of-way of said vacation to maintain the existing location of its facilities. Such 
easements may also be granted to utility agencies to allow for future location of facilities as 
reasonably anticipated by the utility agency.  
 
(4) The final decision of the city council shall be adopted by ordinance.  
 
(5)  The adopting ordinance shall be filed with the city clerk’s office and recorded with the King 
County department of records and elections.  
 
12.55.011 Compensation for street vacation.  
(1)  The final ordinance passed to vacate a street, alley, public easement, or part thereof, shall 
not become effective until the owners of property abutting upon the street, alley, or part 
thereof, provide full compensation to the city. 
 
(2)  The amount of compensation owed to the city for the vacated street, alley, public 
easement, or part thereof, shall be recommended by the hearing examiner and shall be 
determined by the city council according to the following criteria: 

 
(a)  The full appraised value owed for a street of which public funds have been expended, 

through an approved capital improvement project, for the acquisition or construction of the 
street or property.  

 
(b)  Seventy-five (75) percent of the full appraised value owed for a street for which funds 

have been expended for improvements and maintenance within five (5) years from the date of 
the petition;  

 
(c)   Fifty (50) percent of full appraised value owed for streets for which no funds have been 

expended in the acquisition, improvements, and maintenance; 
 
(d)  Administrative costs of the vacation owed for street vacation issued as a matter of the 

laws of 1889-1890 and affirmed by city council action;  
 

(e) Real property of equal or greater value, or public right-of-way which has value for 
access, may be accepted in lieu of cash compensation; 

 
(f) Any combination of subsections (2)(a)-(e) of this section may be accepted, provided that 

the total value of the combined compensation does not total more than  the maximum amount 
of monetary compensation allowed under subsections 2(a)-(c) of this section.  

51 of 100



 
Page 7 of 7 

 
(3) When a street is vacated for a governmental agency, compensation shall be in accordance 
with the classification of the street, except that some or all of the compensation may be waived 
at the discretion of the city council if it will fulfill a public purpose. 
 
12.55.012 Payment of compensation for street vacation. 
(1) The compensation determined to be owed shall be a condition of the vacation and shall be 
paid to the city by the applicant within ninety (90) days of the approval of the adopting 
ordinance by the city council.  The adopting ordinance shall not become effective until the 
compensation owed to the city is paid in full. 
 
(2) One-half of the revenue received by the city as compensation for the area vacated must be 
dedicated to the acquisition, improvement, development, and related maintenance of public 
open space or transportation capital projects within the city.  
 
(3)  A development proposal subject to a street vacation shall not be issued approvals or 
development permits until the street vacation has been acted upon by the city council and any 
required compensation has been paid to the city.  
 
(4)  If the applicant fails to pay the required compensation sum within ninety (90) days, the 
adopting ordinance passed by the city council shall be rescinded and the vacation shall be void.  
 
12.55.013 Appeals.  
 In the event the city council denies the vacation petition, an appeal may be filed following the 
procedures for a Type 4 application outlined in Chapter 14.45. CMC for a Type 4 decision.  
  

52 of 100



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 13, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
    Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 
            
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:   
Human Services Commission – Seven Members (Two of which must be Youth): 

• Two positions open (both youth). 
 
 Name of Applicant                   Resides or Works  
Mia-Elena McFarland (interviewed March 13)      Resides Inside Covington  
Johnathan Woodcock (interviewed March 13) Resides Inside Covington 
 
NOTE: Ordinance Nos. 10-13, 04-05 § 1, and 22-02 § 1) Membership, terms, residence 
requirement:  “Three members shall be adults residing or working within the City of Covington, 
two shall be adults residing inside or outside of the City of Covington but within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits and two shall be youth members between the ages of 14 and 18 years at 
the start of their terms residing in or within a three-mile radius of the City of Covington. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Youth Position No. 4 on the 
Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2013.* 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Youth Position No. 5 on the 
Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2013.* 
 

*Youth Terms:  Each of the youth members shall serve for a term of one year with an option to 
serve a second year without reapplying. 

 
 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 

53 of 100



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 13, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF SR 516:  SE WAX ROAD TO JENKINS CREEK CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP 1039).  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Final Contract Voucher Certificate 
2. Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Covington City Council awarded the SR 516 (Kent-Kangley):  SE Wax Road to Jenkins 
Creek project to Rodarte Construction on October 27, 2009.  Significant improvements were 
constructed during this project, some of which are listed as follows: 

• Widened SR 516 to include access control with the construction of medians and u-turns. 
• Constructed a new signal bridge at the intersection of SE Wax Road and SR 516 (Kent-

Kangley). 
• New waterline was installed as part of interlocal agreement with Covington Water 

District. 
• Conversion of overhead utilities to underground (Starbucks (Skagen Plaza) to the vicinity 

of Jenkins Creek).  
• Sidewalks and landscaped planter strips were added throughout project. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The awarded contract amount was $2,108,368.69 and the final expended amount was 
$2,356,688.88.  Although on the surface it appears that the project over expended by 
$248,320.19, there were some extras that were compensated back to the city from other utilities.  
These extras associated with utilities equated to $146,929.73 above what was anticipated in the 
original budget.  All of these costs were reimbursed to the city from the different utility 
companies. 
 
On October 27, 2009, the budget for this project included a 10% contingency in the amount of 
$189,306 (Schedule A portion only) to address unforeseen challenges during construction.  The 
project was completed under budget utilizing $101,390.46 of the $189,306 contingency 
available, or approximately 54% of the contingency. 
 
In addition, the construction phase of the project was fully funded with grant funds from TIB and 
the state legislature.  The project fully utilized the available TIB funds, but of the 2,000,000 
appropriated for the SR 516 corridor project by the State Legislature, only $1,190,398 were 
needed to complete this project.  Currently, $809,602 is being allocated to the next project along 

54 of 100



SR 516 which is Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE.  These funds will allow the design of the next 
phase to begin this year.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
____________________ seconds, to accept CIP 1039 as completed and 
process final closeout paperwork. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

55 of 100



56 of 100



57 of 100



58 of 100



Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 13, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 

NOVOTX LLC TO REPLACE EXISTING ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Agreement for Services with Novotx LLC 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shawn Buck, Engineering Technician 1 
 
EXPLANATION: 
To improve efficiency and accountability, the Public Works Department evaluated our current 
asset management software and procedures.  Asset management is a fundamental function of the 
Public Works Department.  Assets can include, but are not limited to, roads, parks, storm 
facilities, catch basins, street lights, vehicles, employees, trees, benches, trash cans, supplies, etc.  
Managing assets has two main aspects, an inspection component and a work history component.  
 
After a comprehensive audit, staff determined that the city’s current asset tracking system, 
iWorQ, does not effectively handle the city’s current or future asset management needs.  The city 
has been using iWorQ since 2006 for work management, and the city’s needs have outgrown its 
capabilities.  Primarily, the current system is ineffective because it is not robust enough to handle 
both aspects of asset management together, requiring staff to perform the inspection and work 
history components separately.  To have a holistic view of our assets, those two pieces must be 
contained in one asset management system and database.  A new system that combines 
inspection and work history data and links to our GIS data will improve information retained 
about each asset, make that information more accessible, and will streamline workflows and 
improve communication between the engineering team and the maintenance team.  
 
The following outlines in further detail how our current system is limiting our ability to 
effectively manage assets:  
 

1. Our current system, iWorQ, does not fit our growing needs for GIS mapping capabilities, 
mobile technology, and asset management planning.  

2. Data structure in our current system is organized in a way that makes record keeping and 
reporting difficult. 

3. The interaction between end users and the iWorQ interface is inefficient, labor intensive, 
and time consuming.  

4. System maintenance costs are high when compared to functions and service with our 
current software. 

5. iWorQ is unwilling to update their system to meet our needs now and in the future. 
 

59 of 100



On February 3, 2012, pursuant to the city’s purchasing policies, the Public Works Department 
solicited Requests for Proposals for new asset management software.  Eleven companies 
requested the RFP and two responded with a bid proposal.  Novotx LLC had the most responsive 
proposal with the best software features at the lowest price. 
 
Benefits of the Novotx system include: 
 

1. The system will fit our current needs and will be adaptable to future needs with GIS 
capabilities, mobile technology, and work planning. 

2. The system will link inspection and work history information to our existing GIS assets, 
which will keep information easy to access and organized. 

3. The new user interface will be intuitive and easier to navigate, making it more efficient 
for staff. 

4. The system annual maintenance cost is less than we pay currently for iWorQ and the 
software has more functionality. 

5. The company and system will adapt to our changing needs and grow with us. 
6. The system will track other public works information such as, emergency management 

and response, FEMA data, and future staffing projections. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Continue using iWorQ with limited benefits relative to current needs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The proposed cost for implementing the Novotx software is $39,400 plus travel costs up to 
$5,000 for a maximum of $44,400. 
 

1. 67% of the software cost can be funded by the Department of Ecology Stormwater grant 
because the system will be used for stormwater maintenance and inspections. (SWM 
Fund) 

2. Because costs associated with 2012 traffic counts are included in the Traffic Model 
contract there is roughly $8,000 available that could be put towards a new system. (Street 
fund) 

3. GASB 34 Program Maintenance has $2,500 budgeted that could be used for a new 
system. (Street Fund) 

4. We currently pay $4,200 for annual maintenance on iWorQ which renews in May 2012.  
That money could be spent on the implementation of a new system. Subsequent annual 
maintenance costs will be $3,000 per year (saving $1,200/year). (50% SWM/50% Street 
Fund) 

5. Any other minor costs will be assumed in the SWM Fund. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Novotx 
LLC to replace existing asset management system. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, City Finance Director 

60 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 1 
Updated 4-07-09 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this ___ day of March, 2012, by 
and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Novotx, 
LLC (“Consultant”), a limited liability company. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable 
of working without direct supervision to perform implementation services of an asset and work 
management software program on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide said 
services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under 
which the Consultant will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Consultant and the Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the 
services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Consultant shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the accepted practices for 
similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the 
City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the 
Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as 
now existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event 
no later than December 31, 2012 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of time upon the mutual 
written agreement of the City and the Consultant.  Time is of the essence in each and every term 
of this Agreement.  
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed $44,400, inclusive of all 
taxes and fees. 

ATTACHMENT 1

61 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 2 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be 
made after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a 
form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  
Payment shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after City Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification”, also known as IRS form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all 
applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being registered to do 
business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington business license.   The 
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, 
timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and 
other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform 
its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other members 
and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and 
circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, 
specifications, reports and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy 
thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of records, 
reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of 
form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection 
with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they were 
created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the 
City.  No confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any 
person or party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the 
Consultant that the Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be 

62 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 3 
Updated 4-07-09 

neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of 
employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due.  Industrial or any other 
insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide a 
secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, sub consultants or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer 
and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the 
sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officials, employees, volunteers, 
principals and agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including 
injuries to persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to 
any errors, omissions or negligent acts of Consultant, its contractor, and/or employees, agents, 
volunteers or representatives in performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that if (and 
only if) the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work and services under this Agreement 
and any such damages and injuries to persons or property are caused by or result from the 
concurrent negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, agents, volunteers or 
representatives and the City or its employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives, the 
indemnification applies only to the extent of the negligence of Consultant, its contractor or 
employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives.  In the event of any such claims, demands, 
suits, actions, and lawsuits, Consultant shall assume all costs of defense thereof, including 
administrative and legal fees incurred by the City, and of all resulting judgments that may be 
obtained against the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, employees or volunteers.  If 
resulting there from, any lien is placed upon property of the City or any of its officers, principals, 
agents, employees or volunteers, Consultant shall at once cause the same to be dissolved and 
discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Consultant specifically assumes potential liability for 
actions brought by Consultant’s own employees against the City and for that purpose Consultant 
specifically waives, as respects the City only, any immunity under the Worker's Compensation 
Act, RCW Title 51; and Consultant recognizes that this waiver was the subject of mutual 
negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if 
applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, costs or other legal expenses to 
enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all such fees, costs and expenses 
shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the Consultant, its 
agents, representatives or employees. Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. The Consultant shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such 
forms and with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  

63 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 4 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 

sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  
 

9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 
premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury and 
written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, 
including personal injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 

leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of 
liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury 
or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.   

 
9.4 Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional acts, 

errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined 
single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy 
aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under 
this Agreement. 

 
The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the 

exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Consultant shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the 
execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, furnish the City 
with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such 
policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not 
be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," 
the Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and 
acceptance by the City.  The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be 
grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit 
by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials 
authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 

64 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 5 
Updated 4-07-09 

 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
days of the date of termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies 
it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy 
the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs or activities, and all 
Consultant hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there 
shall be no discrimination by the Consultant or by the Consultant's employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except minimum age 
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide 
occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall 
apply, but not be limited to the following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by 
the City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City 
agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict 
of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that the 
Consultant may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; provided, 
however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with the 
Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately 
disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts 
of interest in favor of the City. 
 

15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant 
and designated by the City as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for 

65 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 6 
Updated 4-07-09 

immediate termination of this Agreement. 
  

 16. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated 
for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so notify the 
Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after 
the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the completion 
of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the 
City in the event that the terms of this provision are effectuated. 
 
 17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 19. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach 
or default. 
 
 20. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 21. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 22. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  22.1 if to the Consultant, to: 
 

Justin Gough, Senior Project Manager 
   Novotx, LLC 
   1436 South Legend Hills Drive, Suite 335 
   Clearfield, UT  84015 
 
or to such other person or place as the Consultant shall furnish to the City in writing; and 

66 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 7 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
22.2 if to the City, to: 
 

   City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Consultant in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 
the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 23. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. 
 
 24. Venue.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
King County, Washington. 
 
 25. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 26. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of 
reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
 27. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and 
the Consultant contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 28. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any 
legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Consultant further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has had an 
opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do 
so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party 
hereto. 
 

29. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
the Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. 

67 of 100



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 8 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________  
By: Derek Matheson      
Its: City Manager      
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
NOVOTX, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: ______________________________ 
Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF UTAH) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known to be the 
_______________________ of _____________________________________that executed the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that 
he/she was authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate 
seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Utah. 
My commission expires__________________ 

 

68 of 100



Justin Gough
Senior Project Manager

Novotx, L.L.C.
1436 South Legend Hills Drive
Suite 335
Clearfield, Utah 84015

justin@novotx.com
Office: 801.682.1400
Mobile: 801.309.6668

Sales Agreement

City of Covington, WA

February 27, 2012

GIS-Based Asset & Work Management Software for
State & Local Governments, Municipalities, & Utilities

EXHIBIT A

69 of 100



2 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Copyright © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated 
into any language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, 
without prior written permission from Novotx, L.L.C..

70 of 100



3Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Thank You

February 27, 2012

City of Covington, WA
Attn: Shawn Buck, Engineering Technician
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100
Covington, WA 98042

Dear Shawn:

Thank you for giving Novotx the opportunity to provide a GIS-based asset and work management solution to meet 
the City of Covington‘s needs; this document describes in detail how we will assist you and your team in meeting 
these needs. 

As a leading provider of GIS-based asset and work management software and services, Novotx is proposing 
our Elements XS application that utilizes the most up-to-date technology and is designed for municipalities and 
utilities of your size.  Elements XS was developed adhering to the latest standards and technologies in software 
development including web based technologies, the Microsoft .NET 4.0 framework, and the latest Microsoft SQL 
Server tools.

The following information is proprietary and confidential.  We request that you do not distribute this to any third 
party, other than those in-house at the City of Covington.  If you need additional information you can write to 
us at 1436 South Legend Hills Drive, Suite 335, Clearfield, Utah 84015 or via phone at 801-682-1400.  Novotx 
appreciates your taking the time to review our proposal and we’re confident that Elements will meet and exceed 
your operational expectations for years to come.

Thanks again for giving us the opportunity to provide a solution for the City of Covington; we look forward to a 
successful partnership.

Sincerely,
Novotx, L.L.C.

Justin Gough | Senior Project Manager

Novotx, L.L.C.
1436 South Legend Hills Drive, Suite 335
Clearfield, Utah 84015

Office: 801.682.1400
Direct: 801.309.6668
Email: justin@novotx.com

Sincerely,
Novotx, L.L.C.

Justin Gough | Senior Project Manager

71 of 100



4 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Contents

Thank You 3

Company Profile and Statement of Qualifications 6

6 Company Profile
7 Statement of Qualifications

Company & Business Philosophy
Employees & Organization
Previous Asset Management Implementations

8 Key Differentiators
8 Technical Support & Help Desk

Designated Support Representatives
Online Help
Phone Support
Onsite Support
User Groups
Strategic Partnerships

Software Information 9

9 Software Overview 

Key Features 10

10 Web-Based Technology
Field And Mobile Access
Web Integration For Customer Requests And Applications
Real-Time Customer Notifications And Status Updates

11 GIS-Based Asset & Work Management
Full GIS Integration
Standalone Application
Industry Standard Compatibility

12 Non-GIS Assets
Fleet Management
Facilities Management
Other Non-GIS Assets

12 Core Asset Management Features
Service Requests, Work Orders, and More
Phone Calls And Dispatching
Inventory Management
Document Management
Redline Drawings & Sketches
Integrated Calendars
Mail Merges, Letters, And Email
Backflow Devices And Inspections
Sewer Overflow Reports

15 Dynamic Data Management

72 of 100



5Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Data Configuration
Real-Time Notifications and Alerts
Design Your Own Workflow
Inventory Management

16 Seamless Utility Billing Integration
16 Municipal & Civil Operations

Building Department
Code Enforcement
Licenses, Permits & Other Applications

Technical Approach and Methodology 17

17 Technical Approach
18 Phased Implementation Methodology
19 Estimated Implementation Schedule
19 Project Management
19 Milestones & Key Deliverables

Progress Tracking
20 Training Approach & Plan

Training Hours

System Support 20

20 Designated Support Representatives
Online Help
Written Documentation and Video Tutorials
Phone Support
User Groups
Onsite Support

21 Remote Diagnostics
21 Support Escalation
21 Expected Response Times

Pricing Information 23
Annual Maintenance
Travel Expenses
Development Services & Data Conversion Rates
Implementation & Training

Payment Terms 24

Additional Information 25

73 of 100



6 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Company Profile and Statement of Qualifications

Company Profile
Novotx, L.L.C. is a specialized team of software engineers and technology consultants focusing exclusively on 
GIS-based asset and work management for government and utilities.  Since 1994 we have provided complete 
business solutions by means of software application development and hardware integration, specific to each of 
our clients’ needs.

Each solution developed by Novotx is designed with a unique sense of style and ingenuity. Practical software with 
clean, easy-to-use interfaces is our specialty. With strong software development, CAD, GIS, and SQL database 
backgrounds, our developers have skill sets that are unmatched throughout the industry. Our team has successfully 
developed and implemented numerous software packages to organizations covering a wide range of industries, 
giving us a broad range of experience and a superior level of expertise. With project managers that have worked 
hands on in the government sector for over ten years, our team has a comprehensive understanding of real-
world applications and workflow processes. Our unique niche in the government sector includes a cost-effective, 
practical software application that was designed around real people with real experience.

GIS-Based Management Software for
State & Local Governments, Water, Sewer, Electric & Gas Utilities

74 of 100



7Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Novotx, L.L.C. has focused exclusively on GIS-based asset and infrastructure management for government and 
utilities since 2004.  With a small customer base of approximately 35 municipalities, utilities, and other forms of 
government utilizing the Elements application, the City of Covington will represent a substantial portion of our 
customer base; as a result the City of Covington will receive extraordinarily high levels of attention and top notch 
service from our staff.  Populations for existing Elements software systems range from 5,000 to 120,000 averaging 
between 50,000 and 60,000.

Statement of Qualifications
Company & Business Philosophy

Comparatively speaking, Novotx a small company with a relatively new product.  We’re well aware of this and we 
understand that the key to our success is providing an excellent product with exceptional service.  Upon contract 
signing two individuals from Novotx will be assigned to the City of Covington - a Project Manager and Technical 
Director.  the City of Covington will receive cel phone numbers for and work directly with these individuals on a 
one-on-one basis throughout the product implementation and training.

We understand that a great product is of little value if not properly implemented and an excellent implementation 
does not improve the quality of a poor product.

Our Developers offer technical support directly to our clients and our Project Managers provide end-user training.  
This method provides the client with top-notch services on the both the implementation and training aspects 
throughout the project.

Employees & Organization

Novotx is a small company with approximately ten employees.  Our staff consists of six developers who provide 
technical support and implementation assistance as needed.  This tight-knit development and support team allows 
us to move quickly and keep up with technology while providing top-notch support to our family of clients.

The remaining staff consists of four project managers who also train end-users and provide implementation 
services as necessary.

These two teams give us speed and flexibility while ensuring that each customer receives critical one-on-one 
project management and technical support when necessary.

Previous Asset Management Implementations

Previous asset management implementations relevant to this scope include municipalities and utilities throughout 
the United States ranging from populations of 5,000 to 120,000.  The average population size of previous 
implementations is approximately 40,000-50,000.

75 of 100



8 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Key Differentiators
Three key differentiators that set Novotx and the Elements application above the competition include:

1. Application Architecture and Design.  Built on the Microsoft .NET 4.0 Framework and utilizing a Microsoft 
SQL Server database, Elements is an extremely scalable and flexible, single-installation application.  Elements 
is also an all-inclusive, non-modular application designed to provide clients with a complete set of tools to 
cover the needs of multiple departments without requiring the client to purchase additional modules or add-
ons.  Water, sewer, storm water, signs, traffic, parks, signals, streets, sidewalks, and fleet maintenance can all 
be managed in Elements without purchasing additional modules.  Permits, licenses, inspections and other user 
definable documents can also be managed in the same manner.  IT departments, community development, 
parks and recreation, police, and fire departments have also found success using Elements without purchasing 
additional modules or add-ons.  The application is completely web-based and accessible everywhere via the 
internet.  Elements will only be installed on a single server at the City of Covington.  All updates, service packs, 
and modifications will be made to only one installation on a single server.  There are no client-side installations, 
configurations, or maintenance required.  The application can be accessed and configured from any internet-
enabled device without downloading, installing, or configuring any client-side applications.

2. Company Size. Novotx is a relatively small company with a relatively small customer base.  This means we 
can be quick and flexible to meet the specific needs of the City.  the City of Covington will also represent 
a large portion of the Novotx customer base and as a result will receive extraordinary levels of one-on-one 
attention and customer care.

3. Company Organization. Your Project Manager at Novotx will provide end-user training and the Lead 
Developer at Novotx will provide technical support directly to your end-users.  This means each time a staff 
member from the City of Covington calls Novotx with a support issue they will work with an application expert 
who is familiar with the individuals at the City of Covington and their workflow processes.  Because the Project 
Manager will be providing end-user training, users will receive expert training from an application authority who 
is experienced with multiple implementations and application methods that have been utilized and deployed 
in various municipalities and utilities covering a broad range of situations.

Technical Support & Help Desk
Designated Support Representatives

A total of three designated support representatives will be assigned to the City of Covington upon contract signing.  
A single designated technical support lead will be responsible for all technical support provided to the City of 
Covington; each time the City of Covington calls Novotx they will work with the same individual to ensure a smooth 
communication channel and ascertain that all issues are resolved timely and effectively.

Two secondary support representatives will also be assigned to the City of Covington in the case of the primary 
support representative being absent when the City of Covington requires assistance.

Online Help

Online help via email and support forums is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  Online video tutorials and 
reference manuals are also available around the clock.

76 of 100



9Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Phone Support

Technical support via telephone is available from 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM Eastern Time.  

Onsite Support

Onsite support is available as requested.

User Groups

All user groups and communities are online.

Strategic Partnerships

Novotx has partnered with and authorized multiple partners including Value Added Resellers, engineers, and third-
party software vendors to implement systems and train Elements users; these partners also offer expertise on 
third-party products and services.  Novotx is also currently partners with Microsoft, ESRI, and several other GIS 
vendors.

Software Information

Software Overview 
Elements XS provides a comprehensive set of GIS-based asset and work management tools in a single, standalone 
application designed specifically for municipalities and utilities.  Elements XS combines the ability to manage 
GIS and Non-GIS assets with a complete inventory management system and a flexible, user-configurable data 
management system.

77 of 100



10 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Key Features

Web-Based Technology
Elements XS is a complete web-based application consisting of one application installation on one server; there 
are no client-side installations or configurations required.

Field And Mobile Access

• Elements provides real-time access all asset and work management data, including GIS and inventory 
management tools, over the web.

• Crew workers and mobile personnel can access GIS data in the field and take full advantage of work history, 
infrastructure analysis data, and more while on the go

• Generate and complete work orders, field inspections, and other important documents in the field

Web Integration For Customer Requests And Applications

Integrate with existing municipal or utility websites and allow customers to submit Service Requests and trouble 
tickets, apply for permits, and complete other tasks online.

• Data submitted via the web is processed directly into Elements; no user intervention required
• Customers can check the status of their submitted issues and applications online in real-time
• Contractors can submit permit and other applications online, then login to view the status of their applications 

in real-time, minimizing phone support for office personnel

Real-Time Customer Notifications And Status Updates

78 of 100



11Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

The same tools used for internal notifications and alerts can also be configured to notify customers and contractors 
when issues have been resolved or when a status change has occurred.

• Customers and contractors can receive automated notifications in real-time as their submitted applications, 
Service Requests, and other documents progress through your workflow process

GIS-Based Asset & Work Management
Full GIS Integration

Elements XS provides multiple GIS integration methods including a direct, real-time integration with ESRI’s ArcGIS 
Server.  Using this method there is no data duplication or synchronization and all GIS data is updated in real-time. 
This comprehensive set of GIS-based asset and work management tools gives utilities and municipalities the 
ability to:

• Manage work orders, permits, licenses, inspections and other important data in a GIS-based environment
• Maintain assets and critical infrastructure in a GIS-based environment
• Tie work history and asset management data to any GIS asset
• Associate asset and work management data to non-customer related assets and accounts
• Visualize work history and asset locations on GIS maps
• Visualize geographic areas containing high concentrations of work orders and other data
• Effectively distribute capital improvement funds by quickly finding problem areas and assets with high failure 

rates
• Maximize existing GIS investments

Standalone Application

Elements provides asset, work management, and GIS data in a single, all-inclusive and non-modular application 
– reducing costs and minimizing the learning curve.

• All information, including GIS data, is accessible in a single application
• Full GIS integration is provided without requiring third-party GIS licenses
• Reduced learning curve; third-party GIS applications are eliminated
• Reduced maintenance and overhead for support staff
• Quicker overall implementation

Industry Standard Compatibility

Elements allows municipalities and utilities to maximize their GIS investment, regardless of which GIS technologies 
are currently being used by the organization.

• Full GIS support for any industry standard GIS application including ESRI, MapInfo, Manifold, Autodesk, and 
others

• Organizations with little or no GIS can use Elements to take advantage of GIS-based asset and work 
management by obtaining GIS data from resources such as counties, state, and local governments then using 
that data with Elements

• GIS data from varying sources and multiple applications can be used together to manage assets and 

79 of 100



12 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

infrastructure

Non-GIS Assets
Fleet Management

Fleet management tools are provided in Elements, giving system users the ability to create and configure documents 
and workflow processes to meet the unique needs of their organization.  Examples of fleet management documents 
managed within Elements include:

• Mileage reports
• Vehicle inspection forms
• Work orders & maintenance history on vehicles
• Fleet inventory records
• Vehicle condition and status reports

Facilities Management

The powerful dynamic data management and workflow tools in Elements offer users the ability to manage work 
history data for facilities and other large structures including:

• Treatment Plants
• Power Plants
• Dams
• Weigh Stations
• Ports of Entry

Other Non-GIS Assets

Any asset that does not belong to a specific geographic location can be managed in Elements XS.  Non-geographic 
assets might include items such as vehicles, heavy equipment, mobile data collection devices, and more.

Core Asset Management Features
Service Requests, Work Orders, and More

Elements XS includes a powerful, user-configurable work management engine designed to allow individual 
systems to configure and combine elements of service orders, service requests, work orders, and other common 
work management documents to meet the unique requirements of their organization.

• Relate a single work order to any combination of GIS assets, non-GIS assets, customers, meters, and other 
items

• Create unique sets of tasks and sub-tasks required to complete various types of work orders
• Track asset repair data, financial information and inventory management data such as parts, labor, equipment 

usage and costs
• Assign work to multiple employees or crews to monitor workflow
• Indicate where work is needed, the type of work required, and the personnel required to perform the requested 

service

80 of 100



13Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

• Record how specific problems are resolved including financial and inventory management data such as parts, 
labor, equipment usage and cost

• Categorize Work Orders and maintain data specific to various types of work that take place

Phone Calls And Dispatching

Log call history information, assign phone calls to specific personnel and/or departments, schedule phone calls for 
future dates and much more.  Additional phone call features include:

• View locations of callers and phone call logs on GIS maps
• Route phone calls to appropriate departments or individuals
• Configure question and answer walkthroughs to help call takers properly diagnose potential problems and 

dispatch appropriate personnel

Inventory Management

Track parts, labor, and equipment costs while controlling job costs, expenditures, stock levels and other financial 
data with the included inventory management module.

• As inventory parts are used on Work Orders, stock levels are reduced at Inventory Locations
• Receive items into inventory and adjust quantities accordingly
• Build reports to view Work Orders containing specific inventory items
• Manage an unlimited number of 

inventory categories and divisions 
to help organize warehouses and 
maintain stock levels

Document Management

Associate drawings, pictures, videos, 
and other important with your assets 
to organize work history data, ensure 
problems are resolved correctly, and 
reduce liabilities.  External files may 
be associated with an asset or a 
specific document.  Types of external 
files associated with documents and 
assets within Elements are not limited 
to, but typically include:

• Job-Site Pictures
• Inspection Videos
• Customer Correspondence
• Backflow Inspection Results
• Hand Sketches and Job-Site 

Drawings 
• CAD Drawings

81 of 100



14 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

• Operations & Maintenance Manuals
• Website Links to Manufacturer’s Websites

Redline Drawings & Sketches

Create redline-type drawings and associate these drawings with your assets.

• Illustrate specific work locations
• Make notes of map inaccuracies and GIS data that needs updating
• Indicate new asset locations when assets are moved during a project

Integrated Calendars

Schedule preventative maintenance, plan projects and coordinate events such as meetings, on-call assignments, 
and more.  Elements users may also:

• Link calendar items with assets using Folios
• View scheduled maintenance activities on calendars
• Use Personal and Company calendars to schedule events 

Mail Merges, Letters, And Email

Use the GIS tools in Elements to select a geographic area and notify customers of important events via merge 
letters or email.

82 of 100



15Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

• Notify customers in a certain geographic area that they will be without service while repairs are being made
• Send newsletters to customers
• Inform customers of rate changes or policy updates

Backflow Devices And Inspections

Elements provides the necessary tools to maintain device information, inspection schedules, approved testers, 
and other related data.  Backflow features found in Elements include the ability to:

• Associate an unlimited number of backflow devices to any property or building
• Maintain device serial numbers, manufacturers, models, and other device-related data
• Configure testing cycles for backflow devices
• Configure inspection forms to match the unique needs of your organization or associate contractor-completed 

inspections with individual devices
• Notify residents and property owners when devices are due for testing

Sewer Overflow Reports

Associate overflow reports with manholes in a GIS-based environment using Elements.  These powerful reports 
indicate overflow causes, calculate water loss, and provide important information related to other affected assets.  
Among other items, Sewer Overflow Reports feature:

• Water loss calculators
• Indicate primary and secondary overflow causes
• Record assets damaged during overflow
• Log cleanup methods, affected assets, and cleanup crew
• Ability to notify agencies and property owners when appropriate

Dynamic Data Management
Data Configuration

Elements offers a completely dynamic data structure allowing system users to configure the software to meet the 
unique needs of their organization.

• System users can design and configure an unlimited number of data input forms with an unlimited number of 
custom fields

• Grid layouts and data views can be configured to meet the specific needs of any organization

Real-Time Notifications and Alerts

The automated notification system in Elements allows users to configure rules and alerts for user-defined criteria.  
When departmental approval statuses are updated on a document, when records are created or changed, or when 
an employee is assigned a given task, Elements can be configured to send out automated notifications in real-time 
to individuals or entire departments via:

• Email

83 of 100



16 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

• Text Message
• SMS Notifications

Design Your Own Workflow

Municipalities and utility systems can configure unique workflow processes to match existing processes within the 
organization.  Features aiding in workflow design include:

• Users may define an unlimited number of form designs and record layouts to suit the unique needs of each 
department or individual involved in any given workflow process

• Automated notifications and alerts keep departments and individuals updated as documents progress through 
their respective lifecycles

• Graphical representation of document progress and approval status (using configurable grid layouts) provides 
quick reference to document status and progress

Inventory Management

Elements XS includes a full set of inventory management tools including the ability to:

• Manage stock levels and set reorder points for inventory at muliple inventory warehouses
• Track the current value of inventory on hand at any inventory location or on any vehicle using the FIFO 

accounting method
• Organize inventory items in a user-definable hierarchy with an unlimited number of hierarchical tiers 
• Create and manage Purchase Orders, Item Receipts, and Invoices
• Manage vendors
• Audit tools for maintaining inventory levels and adjusting stock levels

Seamless Utility Billing Integration
Elements provides an out-of-the-box seamless integration for CUSI’s UMS.net utility billing application allowing 
users to manage customer data and asset management information in the same location.  The same feature set 
may be replicated for other utility billing applications as required.    Features found in this integration include the 
ability to:

• Manage Service Orders and Work Orders in the same application
• Manage customers, locations, meters, backflow devices, transformers, and other assets pertaining to water, 

sewer, and electric companies in a single application
• Access customer data, meter reads, and utility billing data real-time in the field via the web
• Improved accuracy of residential and property data in asset management software
• View utility billing data on GIS maps to visualize high usage areas, potential problem areas, top revenue 

generating areas, and other important data
• Access important financial and utility billing data directly from the utility billing application

Municipal & Civil Operations
Building Department

The dynamic data management tools in Elements give users the ability to efficiently manage Building Permits, 

84 of 100



17Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Inspections, Certificates of Occupancy and other construction-related items.  Basic features include:

• Customers and contractors can submit permit applications online
• Notify customers and contractors of status changes and application progress via email or text message in 

real-time
• Monitor interdepartmental approval statuses of each permit application
• Manage fees, building valuations, and footage assessments associated with permits and applications
• Create configurable inspections based on Permit Application types
• Generate permanent and temporary Certificates of Occupancy
• Monitor expiration and activity dates for certificates and inspections
• Manage contractors, certification levels, identification numbers, and other contractor related data

Code Enforcement

Elements offers the necessary tools to manage and enforce municipal code.  Users can manage nuisance calls, 
code violations, case files, and other code-related items including the ability to:

• Monitor status updates for individual case files
• Set follow up dates for code violations
• Visualize code violation locations on GIS maps
• Schedule field inspections and reviews
• Manage fees associated with violations and permits
• Allow customers to submit complaints and violation reports via the web

Licenses, Permits & Other Applications

Manage Business Licenses, Conditional Use Permits, and other applications specific to the unique needs of you 
organization with Elements.  Typical examples of licenses and permits managed within Elements include:

• Business Licenses
• Solicitor Licenses
• Home Occupation Permits
• Alcohol Beverage Control
• Animal Licenses
• Firearms
• Restaurant Licenses
• Fireworks
• Tobacco
• Watercraft
• Sign Permits

Technical Approach and Methodology

Technical Approach
The project will be administered using the six-phase methodology below.  The Project Manager at Novotx will work 
directly with the Project Manager and other project administration at the City of Covington to coordinate efforts 

85 of 100



18 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

and ensure that the Key Tasks below are met in the appropriate timeframes.

Weekly team meetings will be held with the City of Covington to ensure consistency and accountability.  During 
these meetings the following items will be discussed:
• Milestones & Progress Reports
• Client Questions

Phased Implementation Methodology
The following six-phase implementation methodology will be used as a guide during the implementation, including 
milestones and key deliverables.

Phase Objective Key Tasks Deliverables Timeframe
Phase 1
Discovery

Gain common 
understanding of 
project & develop 
high-level project 
implementation and 
resource plan.

• Project Initiation
• Finalize Project Plan
• Gap Analysis Including 

Business & Technical 
Requirements

Resource Matrix
• User Matrix
• Gap Analysis
• Detailed Project 

Plan Including Data 
Mapping Details

7 Days

Phase 2
Design

Customize and 
configure application 
& workflow 
processes specific to 
client needs.

• Technical Install, 
Configuration, & Training

• App Configuration
• Forms Design
• App Preview
• Core Team Training

• Installation Guide
• Configuration 

Documentation
• Training Material & 

Reference Guides

30 Days

Phase 3
Develop

Import existing data 
and work through 
data conversions.

• Import Existing Work 
Orders

• Import Inventory
• Convert Existing Processes

• Data Imports
• Conversion Plan

15 Days

Phase 4
Deliver

Deliver interface 
modifications and 
custom forms for 
testing.

• Development
• Testing

• Interface 
Modifications

• Reports & 
Associated 
Documentation

15 Days

Phase 5
Training

Finalize application 
testing, create 
customized training 
program and train 
end-users.

• Training Plan
• Training Documentation
• End User Training

• Training Plan
• Training 

Documentation
• SOP Manual
• Assist with Test 

Scenarios

15 Days

Phase 6
Go-Live

Run parallel systems 
as necessary and go 
live.

• Go-Live Readiness Check • Parallel Support
• Go-Live Plan
• Go-Live

15 Days

86 of 100



19Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Estimated Implementation Schedule
The following schedule illustrates an estimated timeline and agenda based on the phased implementation 
methodology described above.

March 19 Contracts signed.

March 19 - May 1 Project kick-off meetings, develop training plan and begin application configuration.

May 1 - June 1 Install application, continue application configuration, begin administrative training.

June 1 - July 1 Expand training, begin using work orders in the office and in the field via web access.

July 1 Deliver customized training materials and documentation for work orders and asset 
management processes.

July 15 Go Live

Project Management
the City of Covington will receive a designated Project Manager from Novotx to ensure open communication and 
quality assurance.  The Project Manager will be available to the City at all times, beginning on day one of project.

The Novotx Project Manager has the following primary responsibilities:
• Communicate with client to ensure consistency and accountability
• Coordinate activities and responsibilities as designated under the project contract
• Prepare status reports describing activities and status assessments
• Conduct ongoing project planning
• Work with the client Project Manager to clearly define timelines with responsibilities and deliverables
• Review resources, roles, responsibilities, policies and procedures, risk management, issue resolution and 

escalation on a regular basis with each client
• Sign off on milestones and final deliverables
• Conduct a post go-live review of the system

Milestones & Key Deliverables
All milestones and key deliverables are described in the six-phase implementation methodology above.

Progress Tracking

Milestones and deliverables for each of the six phases described in the methodology above must be approved by 
and signed off by the client before the next phase will begin.  The Project Manager at Novotx will work directly with 
the Project Manager at the City of Covington for these approvals.

87 of 100



20 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Training Approach & Plan
At the onset of the project Novotx will work with the City to begin organizing resources and developing a training 
plan specifically designed around the City of Covington’s needs and resources.

This plan will be devised by examining the user matrix, city resources, and timelines.  As part of the training a 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) Manual will be developed and delivered to the City.  This manual will be 
used throughout training and after the Go-Live phase.

Training options include either a ‘Train the Trainer’ approach or direct end-user training.  During the initial project 
meetings with the City these options will be evaluated and the best option will be selected.

Training Hours

With a total of 10 estimated users we estimate that training will range from 5 to 10 days, depending on City 
resources and the training method selected by the City.

System Support

The primary goal of the Novotx support staff is to provide timely and accurate support.  We make every attempt to 
resolve all issues on the first call.  Whenever a support representative is not immediately available we make every 
effort to return calls and resolve all issues within the hour.

Designated Support Representatives
A total of three designated support representatives will be assigned to the City of Covington upon contract signing.  
A single designated technical support lead will be responsible for all technical support provided to the City of 
Covington; each time the City of Covington calls Novotx they will work with the same individual to ensure a smooth 
communication channel and ascertain that all issues are resolved timely and effectively.

Two secondary support representatives will also be assigned to the City of Covington in the case of the primary 
support representative being absent when the City of Covington requires assistance.

Online Help

Online help via email and support forums is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Written Documentation and Video Tutorials

Online video tutorials and written reference manuals are included with the application purchase.

Phone Support

Technical support via telephone is available from 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM Eastern Time. 

User Groups

All user groups and communities are online and available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Onsite Support

88 of 100



21Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Onsite support is available as requested.

Remote Diagnostics
Remote diagnostics are available within 60 minutes for business critical support issues and within one business 
day for non-critical issues.

Support Escalation
When an acceptable workaround can be applied, support urgency can be downgraded to a lower level.  Novotx 
support staff are tasked with escalating support issues based on their judgement and knowledge of the customer’s 
needs.  Customers are also encouraged to seek escalation whenever they feel that a situation is not being resolved 
in a timely manner.

Level 1
Inconsequential 

No loss of service from the application; operational questions or frustration using 
specific features.

Level 2
Minor Loss of Service 

Minor loss of service for which a workaround can be provided.

Level 3
Major Loss of Service 

Major loss of service for which a work around can be provided.

Level 4
Business Critical

Complete loss of service from the application; no work around exists and additional 
development is required.

Expected Response Times
Novotx guarantees a 60 minute response time for business critical issues and phone requests.  Email and web 
request responses are guaranteed within one business day.

89 of 100



22 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Minimum Server Requirements
The following are the minimum specifications required for the server that will be hosting the Elements application:

Processor Intel Xeon or comparable 2.0 GHz processor

Operating System Windows Server supporting IIS 7 and the Microsoft .NET 4.0 Framework

Database Server SQL Server 2008 Enterprise Edition or Standard Edition

Memory 4 GB RAM

Hard Disk* Raid 5 with (3) 500 GB Hard Drives
10 GB free hard disk space for system drive

Display Display 1024 x 768 or higher

Additional Hardware High quality Battery Backup Device with Conditioner
Data backup solution

Other Requirements Internet connection is required
IIS 7.0 must be installed and configured
.NET 4.0 Framework must be installed and configured
ArcGIS Server v10 must be installed and configured for direct ESRI integration

* Additional hard disk space may be required depending on the size of the database

90 of 100



23Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Pricing Information

To reduce licensing costs and increase flexibility for the City of Covington, Novotx is offering a Limited Site License 
which includes unlimited access to all features in Elements XS including a non-ESRI ArcGIs Server integrated 
model for up to 10 named users.

Item Qty Rate Total
Software
Elements XS Limited Site License - Basic GIS Platform* 1 $15,000 $15,000
Total Software $15,000

Implementation
Project Management 8 $800 $6,400
iWorq Data Imports 2 $1,200 $2,400
Application Installation & Configuration 2 $1,200 $2,400
GIS Configuration and Consulting 1 $1,200 $1,200
Application Configuration Training 3 $1,200 $3,600
Reports Management and Generation Training 1 $1,200 $1,200
Application Workflow Process Training 2 $1,200 $2,400
Certified Product Testing and Database Admin Training 2 $1,200 $2,400
Go Live Support 1 $1,200 $1,200
Post Go Live Support 1 $1,200 $1,200
Total Implementation $24,400

Annual Maintenance
Elements XS Annual Maintenance (20% of Licensed Software Value) 1 $3,000 N/A

Project Total $39,400

* The Basic GIS Platform includes GIS importing and synchronizing methods supporting industry standard file 
types.  The Basic GIS Platform does NOT include any direct integration with ESRI’s ArcGIS Server.  The Basic GIS 
Platform is currently in development and will be released in Q2 of 2012.  Customers purchasing the Basic GIS 
Platform prior to Q2 2012 will receive the module as it is released.

Annual Maintenance

Annual Maintenance fees include all application updates as well as unlimited technical support via telephone and 
remote access.  Annual Maintenance fees begin 12 months after the software has been installed.

91 of 100



24 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Travel Expenses

Travel expenses are not included in the pricing above.  Travel expenses for this project will be capped at $5,000 
and will be billed actual as they occur.  

Development Services & Data Conversion Rates

Development services and data conversion beyond those listed in this agreement will be billed at $200 per hour.

Implementation & Training

Implementation and training beyond what is listed in this document will be billed at a daily rate of $1,200.

Payment Terms

Payment for all software and implementation is due upon contract signing.

Please mail all payments to:

Novotx, L.L.C.
1436 S Legend Hills Drive
Suite 335
Clearfield, UT 84015

Authorized Signature (City of Covington)

Date

Authorized Signature (Novotx, L.L.C.)

Date

92 of 100



25Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Additional Information

For additional information and questions regarding this agreement please contact:

Justin Gough
Senior Project Manager

justin@novotx.com
mobile: 801.309.6668
office: 801.682.1400

Novotx, L.L.C.
1436 South Legend Hills Drive, Suite 335
Clearfield, UT 84015

93 of 100



26 Proprietary and Confidential | © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

Copyright © 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated 
into any language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, 
without prior written permission from Novotx, L.L.C..

94 of 100



All Content Copyright 2012 Novotx, L.L.C.

www.novotx.com

95 of 100



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  March 13, 2012 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 20, 2012 
 Joint Council/Board Meeting with Covington Water District 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday March 27, 2012 Study Session 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, March 27, 2012 Regular Meeting 
 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

96 of 100



Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) reasonable accommodations provided upon request. Please call Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk, at 253-638-1110.

 
 
 

COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT BOARD 

Margaret Harto, Mayor David Knight, President  
Jeff Wagner, Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Clark, Secretary 

Mark Lanza Vern Allemand 
David Lucavish George D. (Dennis) Holden 
Marlla Mhoon Lloyd Webster 

Jim Scott 
Wayne Snoey 

JOINT COUNCIL/BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 CITY OF COVINGTON AND COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT 

Tuesday, March 20, 2012, 6:00 p.m. 
Covington Council Chambers 

16720 SE 271st Street 
Covington, WA 98042 

 Call to Order – Mayor Harto 
 
 Discussion on Joint Staff Work Group Report 

 
 Council/Board Closing Remarks 

 
 Adjourn 

Draft 
as of 3/6/12 

 

97 of 100



 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 

 

 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION  
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Tuesday, March 27, 2012 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
 **Please note meeting start time ** 

 
      

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve 
presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key 
policy matters. 
 

CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall 
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment from the 
public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  If additional time is 
needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Crosswalks 101 and Pavement Condition Report (Akramoff/Vondran) 
 
ADJOURN      
                             
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 638-
1110.  
 
*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 pm 
 

Draft 
as of 3/7/12 

 

98 of 100



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, March 27, 2012                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Arbor Day Proclamation – March 27, 2012 (Pand) 
• 100th Anniversary of Girl Scouts of the United States of America Proclamation (?) 
• International Student Exchange Day in the City of Covington (Kentwood & Kentlake 

High Schools) 
 
RECEPTION TO WELCOME EXCHANGE STUDENTS AND TEACHERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 13, 2012 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Contract with SBS Legal Services, PLLC for City Attorney Services (Matheson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  March 8 Meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  March 8 Meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  March 1 Meeting (March 15 canceled). 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  March 21 Meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  March 22 Meeting. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Adopt Employee Compensation Program Procedure (Beaufrere) 
2. Citizen Police Volunteer Program Update (Klason) 
3. Award Design Contract for CIP 1127 (SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE) 

(Vondran) 
4. Presentation of 2011 Year End Financials (Hendrickson) 

Draft 
as of 3/7/12 

 

99 of 100

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If Needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

100 of 100


	03-13-12 Special for Interviews and Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, March 13, 2012                                                                                City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE

	C-1 Green Sheet 03-13-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	02.14.12 Study Session
	02.14.12 Reg CC
	02.23.12 Joint Meeting - Black Diamond-Covington-Maple Valley
	City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley
	Joint City Council Meeting Minutes
	Thursday, February 23, 2012
	BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	BLACK DIAMOND STAFF PRESENT:
	COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT:
	Marlla Mhoon and Jeff Wagner.
	COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT:
	MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:
	MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT:
	Noel Gerken.
	MAPLE VALLEY STAFF PRESENT:
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS:
	Mayor Harto opened Joint Meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	Mayor Harto called for approval of the agenda.
	OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR HARTO:
	Mayor Harto welcomed the three cities.
	ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION:
	1. Shared Animal Services.
	Covington City Manager Derek Matheson gave a presentation which included three parts:  the King County option; the Southeast option; and the conclusion with a comparison, a recommendation, a request for direction, and some next steps if the staff reco...
	Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Matheson provided responses.
	The councilmembers from each city discussed the shared animal services options.
	Council Action:  There was consensus from all three councils on three general statements that can be communicated back to King County: 1) the three councils are generally supportive of this three-year county contract; 2) revenue generation is a huge i...
	Council Action:  There was consensus from all three councils on two specific statements: 1) research information about an amnesty program; and 2) raise the question about early termination.
	COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS:
	Councilmembers expressed appreciation for the collaboration between the three cities and noted the benefit of the three cities establishing a regional presence.
	ADJOURNMENT:
	There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

	02.28.2012 Reg CC
	C-2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 03-13-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	C-2 Attachments
	C-3 Green Sheet 03-13-12 DOE Grant Amendment
	C-3 Attachment 1
	C-4 03-13-12 Authorize Local Agency Agreement for CIP 1127
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	C-4 Attachment 1 and 2
	Public Hearing Agenda Item 1 BLUE SHEET ROW Vacation Amendments
	Agenda Item 1

	Publich Hearing Attachment 1_Ord  Adopting ROW Vacation Amendments
	Public Hearing Attachment 1_Exhibit_1_CMC_12_55_street_vacation__Final_022312
	Title 12
	STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND BRIDGES
	Chapters:
	Chapter 12.55 STREET AND PUBLIC EASEMENT VACATION
	12.55.010 Authority.
	12.55.080 Notice of public hearing.
	12.55.090 Criteria for granting street vacation.
	The hearing examiner and city council shall review the requested vacation provided the applicant can demonstrate that:
	(a) Granting the vacation will not conflict with the general purposes and objectives of the city’s comprehensive plan regarding land use, streets, utilities, drainage, parks, trails, and open space;
	(b) The street, or portion thereof, is not likely to serve a useful public purpose both now and in the future, which cannot be met through use of easements for a specific purpose, or the vacation will best serve the public interest;
	(c) The vacated area will not increase the number of single-family building sites or multi-family density. This may be mitigated by appropriate conditions on the vacated area; and
	(d) The request for vacation was not initiated to correct a condition created by an applicant in violation of city ordinance.
	12.55.010  Public hearing and final decision.
	12.55.012 Payment of compensation for street vacation.
	12.55.013 Appeals.


	Item 2 03-13-12 HS Commission Appointments
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet 03-13-12 Acceptance of CIP 1039
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 & 2
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 03-13-12 Novotx - Asset Management Program Agreement
	Item 4 Attachment 1 Agreement for Services - Novotx
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS:
	City of Covington
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	NOVOTX, LLC
	By: ______________________________
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2012.

	Item 4 Exhibit A Novotx_Proposal
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	03-27-12 Study Session
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, March 27, 2012 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	03-27-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, March 27, 2012                                                                          City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




